

LONDON BOROUGH OF SUTTON
PENSION COMMITTEE
MONDAY 12 DECEMBER, 2016

7.00 pm at the
Civic Offices, St Nicholas Way, Sutton SM1 1EA

To all members of the Pension Committee:Chair:
Vice-Chair
Councillors:

Councillor Sunita Gordon
Councillor Hamish Pollock
Richard Broadbent, Edward Joyce, Neil Garratt and
Nick Mattey

Substitutes:

Councillors Manuel Abellan, Steve Penneck and
David Hicks

Niall Bolger
Chief Executive
Civic Offices
St Nicholas Way
SUTTON
SM1 1EA
02 December 2016

Enquiries to: Fiona Bywaters, Committee Services Team Leader
Tel: 020 8770 5122 | Email: fiona.bywaters@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA
1.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

3.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following motion should be moved, seconded and approved if the committee
wishes to exclude the press and public to deal with reports revealing exempt
information:
“That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in
paragraph 3 Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.”

4.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 1 - 6)
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 5 September 2016.

5.

MEMBER TRAINING

6.

CIPFA KNOWLEDGE AND SKILLS FRAMEWORK (Pages 7 - 22)
In response to the recommendations made in the recent governance review of the
pension fund, this report recommends that the committee adopts the current CIPFA
Knowledge and Skills framework and approves the Knowledge and Skills Policy
Statement recommended by CIPFA.

7.

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT (Pages 23 - 38)
This report shows the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers for the
quarter ending 30 September 2016, performance in the last twelve months, annualised
rolling three year performance against target benchmark and performance since
inception.

8.

FINAL TRIENNIAL ACTUARIAL VALUATION OF THE PENSION FUND AT
31 MARCH 2016
Presentation by Barnett Waddingham.

9.

REVIEW OF RISK REGISTER (Pages 39 - 42)
This report presents the Sutton pension fund risk register as included in Appendix A.

2

10.

GOVERNANCE COMPLIANCE STATEMENT (Pages 43 - 54)
This report presents the Sutton Council Pension Fund Governance Compliance
Statement (Appendix A) and provides assurance that the governance arrangements
comply with relevant guidance. There is no material change in the governance
arrangements since they were last reported to the Pension Committee on 7
September 2015.

11.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE (Pages 55 - 62)
This report provides an update on the main work streams impacting pension
administration for the period September to November 2016.

12.

PROGRESS REPORT: GOVERNANCE ACTION PLAN (Pages 63 - 72)
This report updates the committee on governance arrangements including the action
plan resulting from the governance review recommendations considered by Pension
Committee on 5 September and guidance on proposed changes to investment
regulations including the introduction of the new Investment Strategy Statement.

13.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 73 - 74)

14.

ANY URGENT ITEM BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE
CHAIR

15.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING
The next meeting will be held on 22 March 2017 at the Civic Offices.

3

CIVIC OFFICES, SUTTON
GROUND FLOOR MEETING ROOMS
FIRE PRECAUTIONS
If there is a FIRE in the building the fire alarm will sound continuously. Leave the
building immediately by the most direct route, either back through reception or the fire
exit into Lower Square. Take your coat and any bags with you. Assemble in the car
park in front of the Holiday Inn.
First Aid can be obtained from Civic Security in reception.

Toilet

Toilet
Room 1

Toilet

Toilet

Reception

Room
5

Room
4

Fire
Exit

Room
2

Room
3

Fire
Exit

Lower Square
Entrance

Holiday Inn
Car Park

4

Reminder – Declaration of Interests

Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they
should declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’
Interests or to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this
meeting that you have such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber
where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at
this meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that
interest at this meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the
meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at this
meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on the
matter. However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge
of the relevant facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to
prejudice your judgement of the public interest then you should declare the interest
and withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held whilst that
business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct
and Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you
should seek advice before the committee meeting from Alexa Coates.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an interest
you should always declare it.

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 1

Agenda Item 4
Pension Committee
5 September 2016

PENSION COMMITTEE
5 September 2016 at 6.00 pm

MEMBERS:
*Absent

13.

Councillor Sunita Gordon (Chair), Councillor Hamish Pollock (Vice-Chair) and
Councillors Edward Joyce, Richard Broadbent, Neil Garratt* and Nick Mattey

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Neil Garratt.

14.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

No declarations were made.

15.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

In response to Minute 5 (13 June 2016), and with the agreement of the Chair, Lyndsey
Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy & Planning, tabled further narrative around the figures
of the Quarterly Investment Performance Report to March 2016. Members had requested
additional information on the one year performance of fund managers. It was explained that
the report is quarterly, focusing on activity over the previous quarter, and narrative is
provided to explain the performance of fund managers. One year and since inception figures
were provided for information and context and Members were advised to refer back to
previous reports for the required narratives.
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 June 2016 are agreed as an
accurate record.

16.

MEMBER TRAINING

David Walker, Senior Investment Consultant at Hymans Robertson delivered a short training
session focussing on the latest developments in pension regulations and legislation. The
principal items covered were:




LGPS Investment Regulations
The Investment Strategy Statement
Other legislative changes.

David Walker invited comments and questions. At the request of Gerald Almeroth, Strategic
Director of Resources, he gave further comment on the rationale behind these recent
changes, focussing on pooled investment funds. The Director also queried the power of

1

Agenda Item 4

Page 2

Pension Committee
5 September 2016
intervention granted to the Secretary of State to which it was responded that this was to
ensure local authorities take advantage of the benefits of scale on offer through pooling.
Councillor Hamish Pollock asked whether these developments related to EU regulations or
legislation which was answered in the negative. It was added that the recent referendum
result could however result in an impact on procurement procedures. Councillor Nick Mattey
asked as to an example of model pooling to which the response of pooling investment in the
London CIV was given.

17.

QUARTERLY INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE REPORT

The Head of Financial Strategy and Planning presented this report, and highlighted key
aspects of the report for the committee. An amendment was highlighted on Page 16 of the
Public Report Pack (Aviva variance to read +0.6) and additional figures provided with
regards to exempt information on manager fees. She then invited comments and questions.
Councillor Edward Joyce enquired as to the impact of the recent referendum result on the
value of the holdings outlined on Page 9 of the Public Report Pack. It was responded that
the quarter had been volatile but that the FTSE had bounced by its end and an impact on
property values had not yet been witnessed. David Walker added that the strong
performance of the equity market had continued but that currency had seen an impact and
yields had been pushed even lower.
Councillor Edward Joyce then questioned the current state of liabilities and it was answered
that this would be discussed in further detail at the December meeting of the Pension
Committee as only interim valuations were currently available.
The Head of Financial Strategy and Planning committed to confirm the corrected figure on
Page 16, as well as Baillie Gifford fees for the quarter, and report back at the next
committee.
RESOLVED: that the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers be noted.

18.

PRESENTATION BY INVESCO

The Committee received a presentation from Steve Messenger and John German. The
presentation introduced Invesco Real Estate and the UK Residential Today strategy,
examining ‘Build-to-rent’ developments and their current locations, outlining the
opportunities in investment.
Councillor Hamish Pollock asked for further information as to the specific locations of
developments in the Sutton and Croydon boroughs which was given.
Councillor Edward Joyce mentioned that this had been discussed a lot in the news recently
and asked whether it was possible to sell on any share. It was answered that the news
related to retail not institutional investors, and that in this instance funds are reviewed
quarterly and contain a redemption mechanism.

2

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
Pension Committee
5 September 2016

Councillor Sunita Gordon thanked the representatives for their presentation to the
Committee.

19.

GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Committee received a presentation from Michael Ellsmore, Independent Chair of the
Pension Board, accompanied by John Raisin who had conducted the governance review as
contained in exempt Appendix A. The review was overall positive in that the pension
scheme was very well governed and that the Pension Committee sought and took
independent advice. Performance was at least satisfactory across all the broad areas of the
review and the recommendations given were only to improve further rather than to reach a
minimum standard. The Chair of the Pension Committee, Councillor Sunita Gordon,
commented positively as to the recommendations and invited questions and comments from
other Members.
Councillor Nick Mattey commented that the positive review underlined that Committee
Members seek only the best outcome for the Pension Scheme.
Councillor Richard Broadbent remarked that many of the recommendations related to
guidance and regulations which he was unsure if the Committee had received information
on. The Strategic Director of Resources reassured that Officers take into account the
relevant legislative instruments in their work and welcomed any recommendation which
reinforced this.
Councillor Richard Broadbent further queried whether it was more appropriate for the
Pension Committee to determine the action plan rather than the Board. The Chair
commented that the review had been commission by the Board and Michael Ellsmore added
that the Board was willing to be flexible in its cooperation with the Committee. The Strategic
Director of Resources explained that another report would be brought to the Committee in
December on any timeline and action points. He further added that the Pension Board
supports the governance of the Pension Committee, which is responsible for the
administration of the fund.
Councillor Richard Broadbent expressed a particular interest in the recommendations
classed as high priority. The Head of Financial Strategy and Planning commented that many
were already being acted upon through the Committee’s upcoming work programme,
including the training plan and regular review of the corporate risk register. The next item on
the agenda, the Pension Annual Report, was also highlighted as meeting some of the
recommendations.
Councillor Hamish Pollock sought clarification as to whether a further report would be
brought before the Pension Committee in December and then six months thereafter, to
which the Chair responded in the positive.
The Head of Financial Strategy and Planning committed to distribute the Code of Practice
and other relevant reading among Members.

3

Agenda Item 4

Page 4

Pension Committee
5 September 2016
RESOLVED:
1. That the outcome of the review be supported and that the recommendations listed in
paragraph 3.6 be noted.
2. That the presentation of an action plan setting out implementation of the
recommendations to the next Pension Board in October be noted.
3. That further updates on implementation be brought before the December 2016 and
June 2017 meetings of the Pension Committee and that work already undertaken by
Officers in this regard be noted.

20.

PENSION ANNUAL REPORT

The Head of Financial Strategy and Planning presented this report, and highlighted key
developments following previous discussions at the March meeting of the Pension
Committee and the governance review. The following amendments were outlined:






A dedicated risk management section.
More detailed financial information on management expenses.
A section on pension administration to comply with best practice which looks at
the capacity of the administration system.
The inclusion of asset allocation.
Other minor amendments informative to readers.

She then invited comments and questions.
Councillor Richard Broadbent enquired as to the inclusion of a statement of compliance as
per recommendation two of the governance review. The Head of Financial Strategy and
Planning answered that this was not currently included in the cover report but was proposed
to be in the next version. It was added that the report had been evaluated against CIPFA
guidance and addressed the improvements raised at the March meeting of the Committee.
RESOLVED:
1. That the Pension Fund Annual report for 2015/16 be approved.
2. That it be agreed for the Strategic Director Resources to make final amendments to
the report as required before publication.

21.

PENSION ADMINISTRATION UPDATE

The Head of Pensions, Andy Banham, presented this report, and highlighted key aspects of
the report for the committee including the completion of the annual return, the up-to-date
membership and evaluation data provided. It was explained that annual benefit statement
due on the 31 August 2016 were delayed and the regulator had been informed accordingly.

4

Page 5

Agenda Item 4

Pension Committee
5 September 2016
The revised aim was for the statements to be ready by the end of October 2016. The Head
of Pensions then invited comments and questions.
Councillor Richard Broadbent enquired as to the potential sanctions available to the
regulator to which it was responded that a fine would be the worst case scenario.
RESOLVED: that the Pension Administration Update report be noted.

22.

REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME

Members made enquires as to the Triennial Actuarial Valuation and investment strategy
outlined in the work programme and discussed whether an informative session be arranged
prior to the March 2017 Committee or as part of a meeting. The Strategic Director of
Resources advised that any such session be arranged approximately one month prior to the
Committee meeting. Councillor Nick Mattey also proposed that distributing facilitative
briefing notes could also be useful.

23.

ANY URGENT ITEM BROUGHT FORWARD AT THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR

No urgent items were brought forward.

24.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting will take place on 12 December 2016 at 7 pm.

The meeting ended at 8.00 pm
Chair:
Date:

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 7

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Pension Committee

Date:

Report title:

CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Framework

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Open/Exempt:

Open

12 December 2016

Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning,
0208 770 5358
● A Smart Council

Signed:

Date:

01 December 2016

1.

Summary

1.1.

In response to the recommendations made in the recent governance review of the pension
fund, this report recommends that the committee adopts the current CIPFA Knowledge and
Skills framework and approves the Knowledge and Skills Policy Statement recommended by
CIPFA.

2.

Recommendations
The Pension Committee is recommended to:

2.1.

Approve the Knowledge and Skills Policy Statement contained within the CIPFA Code of
Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills (2013) as attached at
Appendix A.

2.2.

Adopt the 2010 CIPFA Pensions Knowledge and Skills Framework for Elected Members to
include the two additional areas of knowledge and skills for local pension board members as
set out in the July 2015 CIPFA guidance ‘Local Pension Boards A Technical Knowledge and
Skills Framework’ as attached at Appendix C.

3.

Background
Governance Report

3.1.

On 5 September 2016 the Pension Committee received a report from John Raisin, an
independent advisor following a review of governance arrangements within the Pension Fund.

Page 8

Agenda Item 6

The report made a number of recommendations for consideration and several of them related
to enhancements to training arrangements for officers, pension committee and board members
to
improve governance and decision making.
3.2.

The governance review acknowledged the training activity already being delivered to both the
Pension Committee and Pension Board largely through the training sessions on both agendas.
However it was felt that the general approach to knowledge and skills was limited in its scope
and did not take account of statutory and CIPFA guidance.

3.3.

The recommendations within the Governance report which relate to training are as follows:
●

That the Pension Committee receive a report on the CIPFA ‘Code of Practice on Public
Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills’ (2013) and adopt the Policy Statement
contained within the Code (high priority).

●

That the Pension Committee receive a report on and adopt the 2010 CIPFA “Pensions
Knowledge and Skills Framework” for Elected Representatives with the addition of the
expanded emphasis on Legislation and Governance and the new area of Pensions
Administration included in the CIPFA publication “Local Pension Boards, A Technical
Knowledge and Skills Framework,” of July 2015 (High Priority).

●

That the Pension Committee formally approve a Training Programme for Committee
Members. (High Priority).

●

That the Pension Board

adopt the CIPFA “Technical Knowledge and Skills Framework”
for Pension Boards, formally approve a Training Programme for Board Members and
consider resolving that all Members complete the Pensions Regulator’s online Public
Service Toolkit within a defined timescale (High Priority).

Statutory Requirements
3.4.

Pensions knowledge and skills are required of decision makers in the Local Government
Pension Scheme (LGPS) by virtue of guidance authorised by the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government under Regulation 12(3) of the Local Government Pension
Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2009 (as amended).

3.5.


The relevant guidance, authorised by Secretary of State, is the CIPFA publication “Principles
for investment decision making and disclosure in the LGPS” (2012). Under the heading
“Effective Decision Making” (page 7) it is stated that:
Administering Authorities should ensure that:
● decisions are taken by persons or organisations with the skills, knowledge, advice and
resources necessary to make them effectively and monitor their implementation
● those persons or organisations have sufficient expertise to be able to evaluate and
challenge the advice they receive, and manage conflicts of interest

Page 9
3.6.

Agenda Item 6

On pages 8 and 9 in relation to “Key issues to consider” regarding effective decision making it
is stated that “the (Pension Fund) committee should ensure that it has appropriate skills.
CIPFA Knowledge and Skills Frameworks

3.7.

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills,
launched in 2011, requires that administering authorities have formal and comprehensive
objectives, policies and practices, strategies and reporting arrangements for the effective
acquisition and retention of the relevant public sector pension scheme finance knowledge and
skills for those in the organisation responsible for decision making.

3.8.

The accompanying CIPFA Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills Framework
set out the key skills areas. The framework is intended to have two primary uses:

3.9.

3.10.

●

As a tool for organisations to determine whether they have the right skill mix to meet
their scheme financial management needs.

●

As an assessment tool for individuals to measure their progress and plan their
development.

The framework is intended to apply to all members of decision making bodies so will include
both pension committee and pension board members. However it has been designed so that
organisations and individuals can tailor it to their own particular circumstances.
The framework attached as Appendix B identifies six areas of knowledge and skills that are
core technical requirements for those working in public sector pensions finance. They are:
●

Pensions legislative and governance context

●

Pensions accounting and auditing standards

●

Financial services procurement and relationship management

●

Investment performance and risk management

●

Financial markets and products knowledge

●

Actuarial methods, standards and practices

3.11.

In July 2015 CIPFA responded to the implementation of local pension boards by issuing further
guidance on requirements for training for board members. The publication entitled ‘Local
Pension Boards A Technical Knowledge and Skills Framework’ gives greater emphasis to
Pensions legislation and Governance than the 2010 framework for elected members and
includes Pensions Administration as a new and separate area of knowledge and skills. This
expanded list of requirements is shown at Appendix C.

3.12.

Members of decision making bodies such as pension fund committees need to be
knowledgeable in the same areas as those set out for practitioners. The essential difference is
that on the whole, members need to have less detailed knowledge of the specifics. The
framework aims to help organisations put together and deliver effective training and

Page 10

Agenda Item 6

development activities to further support and enhance knowledge and effectiveness.
3.13.

There is a separate more detailed CIPFA knowledge and skills framework for officers involved
in the running of the Pension Fund and it is proposed that this is applied when officer objective
setting and development plans are set each year.
Development of Training Plan

3.14.

The intention is to develop a training plan for committee and board members which addresses
the key knowledge and skill areas set out in CIPFA’s Knowledge and Skill framework and
which are also listed in Appendix C. This training plan will recognise the knowledge and skills
members already have and to use a self assessment approach to determine what training is
required. In line with the CIPFA Code of Practice the training plan will be reviewed annually by
both the Committee and the Board to ensure that it is addressing the required areas. The self
assessment form attached as Appendix D will be sent to committee and board members in mid
December for completion.

3.15.

The adoption of the knowledge and skills policy and the implementation of the training plan will
be reported within the Pension Fund Annual Report.

4.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

4.1.

The financial implications are addressed within the report.
Legal

4.2.

There are no legal implications arising from this report.

5.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

CIPFA Policy Statement on Pensions Knowledge and Skills

B

Core Technical Areas Set out in Knowledge and Skills Framework Elected members

C

Core Technical Areas Set out in Knowledge and Skills Framework -Local
Pension Board

D

Knowledge and Skills Self Assessment Form for Completion by Pension
Committee and Board Members

Background documents
Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills Framework Technical Guidance for Pension
Practitioners in the Public Sector

Page 11

Agenda Item 6

Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills Framework Technical Guidance for Elected
Representatives and Non Executives in the Public Sector
Code of Practice on Public Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills 2013 Edition
Local Pension Boards A Technical Knowledge and Skills Framework

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 02 December
2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
Appendix A

CIPFA Policy Statement on Pensions Knowledge and Skills
CIPFA recommends that all organisations responsible for the financial management of public sector
pension schemes adopt, as part of their standing orders, financial regulations or other formal policy
documents appropriate to their circumstances, the following statement:
1. This organisation adopts the key recommendations of the Code of Practice on Public Sector
Pensions Finance Knowledge and Skills.
2. This organisation recognises that effective financial administration, scheme governance and
decision-making can only be achieved where those involved have the requisite knowledge and
skills.
3. Accordingly this organisation will ensure that it has adequate resources, formal and
comprehensive objectives, policies and practices, strategies and reporting arrangements for
the effective acquisition and retention of the relevant public sector pension scheme finance
knowledge and skills for those in the organisation responsible for financial administration,
scheme governance and decision-making.
4. These policies and practices will be guided by reference to a comprehensive framework of
knowledge and skills requirements such as that set down in the CIPFA Pensions Finance
Knowledge and Skills Frameworks.
5. This organisation will report annually on how these policies have been put into practice
throughout the financial year.
6. This organisation has delegated the responsibility for the implementation of the requirements
of the CIPFA Code of Practice to Strategic Director, Resources, who will act in accordance
with the organisation’s policy statement, and, where he/she is a CIPFA member, with CIPFA
Standards of Professional Practice (where relevant).

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 15

Agenda Item 6
Appendix B

Core Technical Areas Set out in Knowledge and Skills Framework Elected Representatives &
Non Executives in the Public Sector
Pensions Legislative and Governance Context
●
●
●

●

A general awareness of the pensions legislative framework in the UK.
An overall understanding of the legislation specific to the scheme and the main features
relating to benefits, administration and investment.
An awareness of the Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and
Contributions) Regulations 2007 and Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)
Regulations 2008 and their main features.
An appreciation of LGPS discretions and how the formulation of the discretionary policies
impacts on the pension fund, employers and local taxpayers.

Pensions Accounting and Auditing Standards
●

●

Awareness of the Accounts and Audit Regulations and legislative requirements relating to the
role of the committee and individual members in considering and signing off the accounts and
annual report.
Awareness of the role of both internal and external audit in the governance and assurance
process.

Financial Services Procurement and Relationship management
●

●
●

Understanding of the background to current public procurement policy and procedures, and of
the values and scope of public procurement and the roles of key decision makers and
organisations.
A general understanding of the main public procurement requirements of UK and EU
legislation.
Understanding of the nature and scope of risks for the pension fund and of the importance of
considering risk factors when selecting third parties.

Investment Performance and Risk Management
●
●
●
●

Understanding of the importance of monitoring asset returns relative to the liabilities and a
broad understanding of ways of assessing long-term risks.
Awareness of the Myners principles of performance management and the approach adopted
by the committee.
Awareness of the Myners principles and the need to set targets for the committee and to
report against them.
Awareness of the range of support services, who supplies them and the nature of the
performance monitoring regime.

Financial Markets and Products Knowledge
●
●
●

Awareness of the risk and return characteristics of the main asset classes (equities, bonds,
property).
Understanding of the role of these asset classes in long-term pension fund investing.
Understanding of the primary importance of the investment strategy decision.

Agenda Item 6

Page 16
Appendix B

●
●

A broad understanding of the workings of the financial markets and of the investment vehicles
available to the pension fund and the nature of the associated risks.
An awareness of the limits placed by regulation on the investment activities of local
government pension funds.

Actuarial Methods, Standards and Practices
●
●
●
●

Knowledge of the valuation process, including developing the funding strategy in conjunction
with the fund actuary, and inter-valuation monitoring.
Awareness of the importance of monitoring early and ill health retirement strain costs.
A broad understanding of the implications of including new employers into the fund and of the
cessation of existing employers.
A general awareness of the relevant considerations in relation to outsourcings and bulk
transfers.

Page 17

Agenda Item 6
Appendix C

Core Technical Areas Set out in Knowledge and Skills Framework -Local Pension Board
Pensions legislation
● A general understanding of the pensions legislative framework in the UK.
● An overall understanding of the legislation and statutory guidance specific to the scheme and
the main features relating to benefits, administration and investment.
● An appreciation of LGPS discretions and how the formulation of the discretionary policies
impacts on the pension fund, employers and local taxpayers.
● A regularly updated appreciation of the latest changes to the scheme rules.
Pensions governance
● Knowledge of the role of the administering authority in relation to the LGPS.
● An understanding of how the roles and powers of the DCLG, the Pensions Regulator, the
Pensions Advisory Service and the Pensions Ombudsman relate to the workings of the
scheme.
● Knowledge of the role of the Scheme Advisory Board and how it interacts with other bodies in
the governance structure.
● Broad understanding of the role of pension fund committees in relation to the fund,
administering authority, employing authorities, scheme members and taxpayers.
● Awareness of the role and statutory responsibilities of the treasurer and monitoring officer.
● Knowledge of the Myners principles and associated CIPFA and SOLACE guidance.
● A detailed knowledge of the duties and responsibilities of pension board members.
● Knowledge of the stakeholders of the pension fund and the nature of their interests.
● Knowledge of consultation, communication and involvement options relevant to the
stakeholders.
● Knowledge of how pension fund management risk is monitored and managed.
● Understanding of how conflicts of interest are identified and managed.
● Understanding of how breaches in law are reported.
Pensions administration
● An understanding of best practice in pensions administration, eg performance and cost
measures.
● Understanding of the required and adopted scheme policies and procedures relating to:
member data maintenance and record-keeping processes; internal dispute resolution;
contributions collection scheme communications and materials.
● Knowledge of how discretionary powers operate.
● Knowledge of the pensions administration strategy and delivery (including, where applicable,
the use of third party suppliers, their selection, performance management and assurance
processes).
● An understanding of how the pension fund interacts with the taxation system in the UK and
overseas in relation to benefits administration.
● An understanding of what additional voluntary contribution arrangements exist and the
principles relating to the operation of those arrangements, the choice of investments to be
offered to members, the provider’s investment and fund performance report and the payment
schedule for such arrangements.
Pensions accounting and auditing standards
● Understanding of the Accounts and Audit Regulations and legislative requirements relating to
internal controls and proper accounting practice.

Agenda Item 6

Page 18
Appendix C

●
●

Understanding of the role of both internal and external audit in the governance and assurance
process.
An understanding of the role played by third party assurance providers.

Pensions services procurement and relationship management
● Understanding of the background to current public procurement policy and procedures, and of
the values and scope of public procurement and the roles of key decision makers and
organisations.
● A general understanding of the main public procurement requirements of UK and EU
legislation.
● Understanding of the nature and scope of risks for the pension fund and of the importance of
considering risk factors when selecting third parties.
● An understanding of how the pension fund monitors and manages the performance of their
outsourced providers.
Investment performance and risk management
● Understanding of the importance of monitoring asset returns relative to the liabilities and a
broad understanding of ways of assessing long-term risks.
● Awareness of the Myners principles of performance management and the approach adopted
by the administering authority.
● Awareness of the range of support services, who supplies them and the nature of the
performance monitoring regime.
Financial markets and products knowledge
● Understanding of the risk and return characteristics of the main asset classes (equities, bonds,
property).
● Understanding of the role of these asset classes in long-term pension fund investing.
● Understanding of the primary importance of the investment strategy decision.
● A broad understanding of the workings of the financial markets and of the investment vehicles
available to the pension fund and the nature of the associated risks.
● An understanding of the limits placed by regulation on the investment activities of local
government pension funds.
● An understanding of how the pension fund interacts with the taxation system in the UK and
overseas in relation to investments.
Actuarial methods, standards and practices
● A general understanding of the role of the fund actuary.
● Knowledge of the valuation process, including developing the funding strategy in conjunction
with the fund actuary, and inter-valuation monitoring.
● Awareness of the importance of monitoring early and ill health retirement strain costs.
● A broad understanding of the implications of including new employers into the fund and of the
cessation of existing employers.
● A general understanding of the relevant considerations in relation to outsourcings and bulk
transfers.
● A general understanding of the importance of the employer covenant and the relative
strengths of the covenant across the fund employers.

Page 19

Agenda
Item 6D
Appendix

Knowledge and Skills Self Assessment Form for Completion by Pension Committee and Board
Members

Name
Role:

Pension Committee Member / Local Pension Board Member (please
delete as appropriate)

Pensions Legislation
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Pensions Governance
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Y/N

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Page 20

Agenda Item 6

Appendix D

Pensions Administration
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Y/N

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Pensions accounting and auditing standards
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Y/N

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Pensions services procurement and relationship management
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Page 21

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Agenda
Item 6D
Appendix

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Investment performance and risk management
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Y/N

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Financial markets and products knowledge
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Page 22

Agenda Item 6

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Appendix D

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Actuarial methods, standards and practices
I have all the knowledge
detailed below and do not
require additional training

I would like further training on
the areas highlighted below

Y/N

Please provide details of your knowledge and Skills

Y/N

Please provide details of any areas of specific concern

Page 23

Agenda Item 7

Report to:

Pensions Committee

Report title:

Quarterly Investment Performance Report to 30 September 2016

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:
Signed:

1.

Date:

12 December 2016

Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning, 0208 770
5358
Lisa Doswell, Treasury and Investments Manager, 0208 770 5354
●

A Smart Council

Part-Exempt: Appendix B is exempt on the basis of Paragraph 3,
Schedule 12A of Local Government Act 1972
Date:
01 December 2016

Summary

1.1. This report shows the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers for the quarter
ending 30 September 2016, performance in the last twelve months, annualised rolling three
year performance against target benchmark and performance since inception.
2.

Recommendation
The Pension Committee is recommended to:

2.1. Note the performance of the Pension Fund Investment Managers.
3.

Background

3.1

Legal & General (L&G), Newton Investment Management (Newton), Harding Loevner,
Schroder, Baillie Gifford, Pyrford, M&G, BlackRock and Partner’s Group were employed as the
Council’s investment managers for the year ending 30 September 2016. The Council was also
invested in two separate funds; M&G UK Companies Financing Fund and Aviva Investors UK
Real Estate Fund of Funds Plan. In December 2015 the Fund agreed a new residential property
mandate with Invesco. There has been no investments made into this fund as yet. The first
drawdown is expected by the end of quarter three.

3.2

Under the Council’s current investment strategy a target benchmark allocation of 42% of the
total fund value is to be invested in global equities managed in separate, equal sized portfolios
by Newton, Harding Loevner and Schroder’s. 13% of the fund is to be invested in UK equities
by L&G and 15% of the fund is to be split equally in absolute return pooled vehicles managed by

Agenda Item 7

Page 24

Baillie Gifford and Pyrford. 20% of the fund is currently targeted in bonds by M&G, however
there is a long term strategic target to bonds of 15% and 5% to infrastructure, but this will take
some time to implement. 10% of the fund is targeted in Property, split between 6% with
BlackRock and 4% with AVIVA. This is shown in the chart on the left, against the current actual
allocation of the fund on the right.

Target Benchmark Allocation

Actual Allocation of Fund as at 30/09/2016

3.3

Actual allocations against the target are monitored on a regular basis. Potential courses of
action are discussed with Hymans Robertson if material variations occur.

3.4

Performance targets for all fund managers are set by the Council to obtain good investment
performance returns, whilst also balancing risk. The targets set are in line with the overall
investment strategy agreed by the Members in March 2011.

4.

Performance of the Managers

4.1

The tables set out within the report show the manager’s performance for the quarter, over the
last twelve months and since inception (where possible) and a comparison against the relevant
indices in the Council’s strategic asset allocation benchmark. All figures are shown net of fees.
Appendix C (exempt information) shows the basis on which fees are calculated by each fund
manager and the fees which have been incurred for the current and previous quarter.

4.2

The investment performance monitoring service transitioned from WM to Northern Trust (The
Fund’s custodian) and this is the seventh quarter in which Northern Trust’s performance data
has been used to produce this report.
Movement in Fund Value from 31 March 2016 to 30 September 2016

4.3

The table below shows the value of holdings with each of the fund managers as at the end of
the latest quarter and the end of the previous quarter.

Page 25

Fund Manager

Total Equities

Agenda Item 7

Value at end
30/06/16

Value at end
30/09/16

Value
change

£’000

£’000

£’000

%
Change

304,986

332,740

27,754

9.1

Legal & General

61,072

65,840

4,768

7.8

Newton

84,192

91,384

7,192

8.5

Harding Loevner

82,310

89,838

7,528

9.1

Schroder

77,412

85,678

8,266

10.6

Bonds

86,361

92,408

6,047

7.0

M&G bonds

86,361

92,408

6,047

7.0

Pooled Multi Asset

80,883

84,254

3,371

4.2

Baillie Gifford

40,458

42,355

1,897

4.7

Pyrford

40,425

41,899

1,474

3.6

Property

34,772

33,891

-881

-2.5

BlackRock

22,530

21,832

-698

-3.1

AVIVA

12,242

12,059

-183

-1.5

Alternatives

14,580

16,511

1,931

13.2

Partner’s Group *

10,722

12,779

2,057

19.2

3,858

3,732

-126

-3.3

12,716

11,346

-1,370

-10.8

534,298

571,150

36,852

6.9

M&G – Co’s Financing Fund
Cash
Total Assets

* 20th capital call was made to Partners Group in July for EUR 2.5m, approximately £2.1m.

Page 26

Agenda Item 7

4.4

The chart below shows the percentage change in the total value of the fund each quarter.

Fund Value Movement %

The above table excludes cash.

5.

Total Fund Performance
Total fund performance pre and post strategy implementation

5.1

Benchmark
45 months
to 31/10/12

Fund
45 months
to 31/10/12

Variance

Benchmark
45 months
to 30/09/16

%

%

%

%

Fund
45 months
to
30/09/16
%

12.8

11.0

-1.8

10.2

10.8

Variance

%
0.6

Prior to the new strategy implementation the combined fund underperformed the benchmark by
1.8% over the previous 45 months (benchmark 12.8%, actual 11.0%). Looking at performance
45 months after the new strategy was implemented the combined fund outperformed the
benchmark by 0.6% (benchmark 10.2%, actual 10.8%).

Page 27

Agenda Item 7

Total fund performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2016
TOTAL FUND

Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

Equities

55

59

8.2

9.0

0.8

Bonds

20

16

4.4

7.0

2.6

Pooled Multi Asset

15

16

0.9

4.2

3.3

Property

10

6

-0.7

-1.6

-2.3

Alternatives

0

3

n/a

n/a

n/a

100.0

100.0

5.5

7.2

1.7

TOTAL ASSETS

5.2

%

At total fund level the combined fund performance outperformed the benchmark over the period
achieving a return of 7.2% compared to the benchmark return of 5.5%. Performance of
individual asset classes is detailed in paragraph 4.9 onwards.
Total fund performance – longer term
TOTAL FUND

1 Year
% pa

3 Years
% pa

5 Years
% pa

Fund return

21.0

10.3

11.3

Benchmark return

17.7

9.7

11.0

Variance %

3.3

0.6

0.3

5.3

At total fund level, as at September 2016 the combined fund outperformed the benchmark by
3.3% over the past year, by 0.6% per annum over the past three years and 0.3% over the past
five years.

5.4

The bar chart below summarises the overall performance of the fund over the latest one year,
three year and five year positions:

Page 28

Agenda Item 7

6.

Equity Performance
Equity performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2016
Manager

Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

L&G

13

12

7.8

7.8

0.0

Newton

14

16

8.4

8.5

0.1

Harding Loevner

14

16

8.4

9.2

0.8

Schroders

14

15

8.4

10.5

2.1

TOTAL EQUITIES

55

59

8.2

9.0

0.8

%

Page 29

Agenda Item 7

6.1

Global equities delivered strong positive returns during the quarter and volatility continued to
ease following the initial uncertainty in the aftermath of the UK referendum on membership of
the EU. Markets were also boosted by growing confidence that central banks would continue
supporting economic activity, while ongoing weakness in sterling boosted returns for UK based
investors. However equities did suffer a brief setback in early September amid concerns that
the Federal Reserve could push US interest rates higher, but they remained on hold. Global
mining and technology firms led the gains with investors favouring commodity and
growth-orientated companies. Emerging markets were the standout performers among global
equity markets.

6.2

As shown in the table below, all managers outperformed the benchmark, but Schroders
performed particularly well. Newton benefitted from being overweight in technology and
underweight in energy and telecommunications, however their performance was dampened by
being overweight in the healthcare sector. Harding Loevner benefitted from good stocks in
internet focused businesses in the US and the UK. Schroders’ value approach and rebalancing
methodology is effective at taking advantage of market volatility and they benefitted from this
during the quarter. Their holdings in financials provided their largest contribution to
outperformance, as well as their long held positions in Hong Kong real estate companies.
Equity performance – longer term
Manager

6.3

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return
1 Year

Variance

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

%

Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%

%

%

L&G

16.8

16.8

0.0

7.5

7.5

0.0

Newton

30.6

28.9

-1.7

14.5

16.2

1.7

Harding
Loevner

30.6

34.8

4.2

14.5

15.7

1.2

Schroders

30.6

30.7

0.1

14.5

13.9

-0.6

As shown in the table above, over the longer term L&G matched the benchmark during the
twelve months ended September 2016, Newton underperformed the benchmark, Harding
Loevner showed outperformance and Schroders underperformed. Since inception, L&G
matched the benchmark, Newton and Harding Loevner outperformed the benchmark and
Schroders underperformed.

%

Page 30

Agenda Item 7

7.

Bond Performance
Bond performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2016 (M&G)
Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

UK Index Linked

8

8

10.9

10.9

0.0

Alpha Opportunities
Fund

12

8

0.1

3.5

3.4

TOTAL
(Weighted Average)

20

16

4.4

7.0

2.6

%

7.1

During the quarter the Bank of England’s announcement for £10 billion of corporate bond
purchases took the market by surprise, resulting in sterling corporate bond markets
outperforming both European and US investment grade markets. Bond prices rallied during the
quarter and the demand for UK bonds remained robust. This was boosted by the continued
positive economic data and the more stable political backdrop.

7.2

Bond prices significantly rallied during the quarter, that coupled with M&G's value approach,
which actively reduces credit risk across the fund, provided their strong performance. In
reducing risk they sold out of positions in a number of industrial companies after a rally in their
prices. They also took this approach to exposure in the financial sector. Using proceeds from
the risk reduction they invested in new issues, which included a number of securitised bonds
which offered good value. The Index-Linked fund benefitted from positions in gilts maturing in
10 and 50 years. M&G sold gilts maturing in 30 years and switched into 30 year conventional
gilts. This position dampened performance as inflation increased.

Page 31

Agenda Item 7

Bond performance – longer term
Manager

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return
1 Year

Variance

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

%

Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%

%

%

UK Index
Linked

26.9

27.2

0.3

18.7

18.9

0.2

Alpha
Opportunities
Fund

0.5

5.7

5.2

1.3

2.3

1.0

%

7.3

As shown in the table above, over the longer term both funds outperformed the benchmark
during the twelve months ended September 2016. Both funds also outperformed since
inception.

8.

Pooled Multi-Asset Performance
Pooled Multi-Asset Performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2016
Manager

Target
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Benchmark
Return
%

Fund
Return
%

Variance

Baillie Gifford

7.5

7.6

0.9

4.7

3.8

Pyrford

7.5

7.5

0.9

3.7

2.8

TOTAL POOLED
MULTI-ASSET

15.0

15.1

0.9

4.2

3.3

%

Page 32

Agenda Item 7

8.1

Baillie Gifford assets were transferred from five underlying boroughs into the London Collective
Investment Vehicle (CIV) on 15 February 2016. This was the first such transfer for the London
Borough of Sutton towards the pooling of investment assets. Following this, on the 17 June
2016 Pyrford became Sutton’s second fund manager to transfer into the CIV.

8.2

Over the quarter both Baillie Gifford and Pyrford outperformed the benchmark. The biggest
contributor to performance for Baillie Gifford c ame from a strong equities return, in line with
recovery in broader equity markets, reversing the negative performance from the previous
quarter. High yield credit and structured finance exposures during the quarter also added
positively, with only their active currency position detracting marginally from performance.
Pyrford’s outperformance has also been attributed to equities, particularly overseas holdings,
which continued to be boosted by sterling’s weakness. Their holdings in overseas bonds also
contributed positively in the quarter.
Pooled Multi-Asset Performance – longer term
Manager

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return
1 Year

Variance

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

%

Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%

%

%

%

Baillie Gifford

3.7

7.3

3.6

3.6

5.1

1.5

Pyrford

3.7

11.7

8.0

3.6

4.7

1.1

8.3

Both managers outperformed the benchmark during the twelve months ended September 2016
and both outperformed since inception.

9.

Property Performance

Property Performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2016
Manager

Target
Allocation

Fund
Allocation

Benchmark
Return

Fund
Return
Capital
%

Total Fund
Return

Variance

%

Fund
Return
Income
%

%

%

%

%

BlackRock

6

4

-0.7

1.1

-3.1

-2.0

-2.7

AVIVA

4

2

-0.7

0.8

-1.5

-0.7

0.0

Page 33

Agenda Item 7

9.1

Capital values fell in the immediate aftermath of the EU referendum vote and a number of open
ended property funds suspended redemptions. However, as the quarter progressed the impact
on the market moderated and many of the funds resumed trading normally. The industrial
sector was the outstanding performer over the quarter, but all three sectors recorded negative
returns. City of London offices have been hardest hit.

9.2

BlackRock has indicated that the benchmark for the quarter may have been artificially inflated
as a result of valuation adjustments made by some fund managers in the previous quarter,
which at that time artificially reduced the benchmark. Subsequently, when these adjustments
were unwound in the latest quarter the effect on the benchmark was reversed. BlackRock had
an active quarter, they completed four sales and one purchase and they made a strategic move
to reduce their exposure to Central London offices. AVIVA benefitted from its defensive strategy
with reduced exposure to Central London offices, secondary assets and funds with leverage.
Their top performing funds in the quarter were UNITE UK Student Accommodation Fund, The
Leisure Fund and Savills IM UK Income and Growth Fund.
Property Performance – longer term
Manager

9.3

Benchmark
Return 1
Year

Fund
Return
1 Year

Variance

Fund
Return
Since
Inception
%

Variance

%

Benchmark
Return
Since
Inception
%

%

%

RREEF/Blackrock

3.3

3.1

-0.2

3.9

0.6

-3.3

AVIVA

3.3

3.6

0.3

7.9

7.8

-0.1

%

As shown in the table above, Blackrock underperformed and AVIVA outperformed the
benchmark during the twelve months ending September 2016. Both managers underperformed
the benchmark since inception.

Page 34

Agenda Item 7

10.

Alternatives Performance
Alternatives Performance for the latest quarter ended 30 September 2016
Manager

Benchmark
Allocation
%

Fund
Allocation
%

Fund
Return
%

Partner’s Group –
Infrastructure

0

2

8.4

M&G – UK
companies financing
fund

0

1

3.3

10.1 Partner’s Group and M&G are not measured as part of the fund’s overall strategic benchmark.
Due to the way investment is made with Partner’s Group, it is not meaningful to make
comparisons with their performance target at this stage.
Alternatives Performance – longer term
Manager

11.

Fund Return
1 Year
%

Fund Return
Since Inception
%

Partner’s Group

28.6

4.5

M&G

3.8

9.1

Annualised Rolling 3 Years to 30 September 2016

11.1 The annual performance targets for equities, bonds and pooled multi-asset fund managers are
set over a rolling three year period. Since M&G (Bonds) were appointed in May 2014 this
assessment will start for the quarter ended 30/06/17.
Manager

3 Yr
Benchmark
Return

Target 3 Yr
Return

3 yr Fund
Return

Variance
against
Benchmark

Variance
against
Target

%

%

%

%

%

Newton

13.2

15.2

13.9

0.7

-1.3

Harding
Loevner

13.2

16.2

15.8

2.6

-0.4

Schroder

13.2

16.2

11.4

-1.8

-4.8

Baillie Gifford

3.6

6.6

4.9

1.3

-1.7

Page 35

Pyrford

3.6

6.6

Agenda Item 7

5.0

1.4

-1.6

11.2 The above table shows that over the three year rolling period all managers except for Schroders
have outperformed the benchmark, however all managers have underperformed the target over
the same period. The underperformance from Schroders is likely to be due to their value based
approach which does not perform well in current market conditions.
12.

Options Considered

12.1 Not applicable
13.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

13.1 The financial implications are addressed within the report.
Legal
13.2 There are no legal issues arising from this report.
14.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Current Investment Strategy Benchmarks and Targets

B

Manager Fees - exempt on the basis of Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A of
Local Government Act 1972

Background documents
Northern Trust Investment Performance Reports

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 2 December 2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

No

N/A

Agenda Item 7

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

Page 36

No

N/A

Page 37

Agenda Item 7
APPENDIX A

CURRENT INVESTMENT STRATEGY BENCHMARKS AND TARGETS
Each manager has been set a specific benchmark as well as a performance target against which they
will be measured. This is shown in the table below. The Fund’s strategic asset allocation benchmark
is shown in the performance tables.
Manager

Mandate

Tactical Benchmark

Performance Target

Newton

Global equity pooled
fund - active

MSCI All Countries World
NDR Index

2% above benchmark over rolling 3 year
period (gross of fees)

Harding Loevner

Global equity pooled
fund – active

MSCI All Countries World
NDR Index

3% above benchmark over rolling 3 year
period (gross of fees)

Schroder

Global equity pooled
fund - active

MSCI All Countries World
NDR Index

3% above benchmark over rolling 3 year
period (gross of fees)

Legal & General

UK Global equities
pooled fund – passive

UK - FT All Share Index

To track the benchmark

Baillie Gifford

Pooled multi asset

3 month LIBOR + 3%

3% above benchmark over rolling 3 year
period (gross of fees)

Pyrford

Pooled multi asset

3 month LIBOR + 3%

3% above benchmark over rolling 3 year
period (gross of fees)

M&G

Bonds - Alpha Fund

3 Month LIBOR + 3%

3 Month LIBOR + 3 to 5 %.

M&G

Bonds - Index Linked

FTSE A British
Government Over 5 Years
Index-Linked

0.75% above benchmark over rolling 3
years period (gross of fees)

RREEF/
BlackRock

Pooled Property
Funds

IPD UK All Pooled Property
Funds Index

To outperform the benchmark

AVIVA

Property Fund of
Funds

IPD UK All Pooled Property
Funds Index

To outperform the benchmark

Partner’s Group

Infrastructure

No tactical benchmark, but
targets an absolute return
of 8% per annum

No outperformance objective

M&G

UK Companies
Financing Fund

No tactical benchmark, but
assessed against 7 day
LIBID and targets return of
10% pa net of fees

No outperformance objective

Invesco

Residential Property

Unleveraged return of 8-9%

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 39

Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Pension Committee

Report title:

Risk Register

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee:

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning, 0208 770
5358

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●

Date:

12 December 2016

A Smart Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

01 December 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

This report presents the Sutton pension fund risk register as included in Appendix A.

2.

Recommendations
The Pension Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Review the updated Sutton pension fund risk register, make any suggestions for amendment
and approve the updated document.

3.

Background

3.1

Section 249B of the Public Services Pensions Act 2013 requires the administering authority to
manage risks that are likely to have a significant impact on the fund by establishing and
complying with adequate control arrangements. The Pensions Regulator has issued
supporting guidance for this, Code of Practice No. 14. There is also guidance from CIPFA,
Managing Risk in the Local Government Pension Scheme.

3.2

In alignment with the guidance, significant emerging and persisting risks are recorded in the
risk register that needs to be reviewed regularly by the Pension Committee. This is because
the management of risk is a key responsibility of those charged with governance.

3.3

The risk register is also reported regularly to the Pension Board in its role assisting with
securing compliance with control arrangements. The risk register was last considered by the
Pension Board on 11 October 2016. Officers review and update the risk register prior to it

Agenda Item 9

Page 40

being reviewed by the Pension Committee and the Pension Board.
4.

Issues

4.1

Risks are identified from relevant sources of information, such as management reports and
from reviews undertaken by independent advisors. The actual sources are recorded in the risk
register along with the gross and net risk scores (Likelihood x Impact) that determine the RAG
ratings. The net score indicates the exposure arising from a risk after the risk control
(mitigation) action is implemented and making the assumption that the action is effective. The
Council’s external auditors Grant Thornton also carry out a review of the Pension Fund
accounts and system controls on an annual basis and report this to the Council’s Audit
Committee.

4.2

The risk register shows that there are five risks with gross scores rated red (high risk). These
are under the categories of administration, funding and investment risks. For all of these risks
the risk control (mitigation) actions align with best practice and are implemented, and so the
net scores are rated either amber (medium risk) or green (low risk). Regarding the Investment
risks (entries 5.1, 5.2 and 5.3), the investment strategy reflects the pension fund’s liability
profile and the need to manage investment risk. The strategic asset allocation benchmark
provides effective risk control and a prudent balance between risk and return. Further risk
control is obtained by employing specialist investment managers and splitting the portfolio
between different managers. Regular monitoring of performance contributes to the effective
management of investment risk. In the case of the funding risks (entries 3.1 and 3.4), actuarial
valuations take account of life expectancies with some allowance for future increases and
admitted employers are vetted for financial strength.

4.3

Recent reviews by management and an independent advisor have resulted in a number of
new entries within the existing categories of risk management and three new risk categories
being included within the register. The new categories are employer risk, resource and skill
risk and reputational risk. Within the new categories all net scores are rated green (low risk).
For several of the new entries within the existing categories officers are currently assessing
the risk control (mitigation) action needed and this will be updated once identified and agreed.

5.

Options Considered

5.1

Not applicable.

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The resources required to
undertake this work are included within existing budgets.
Legal

6.2

This report has been designed to meet the risk management requirements of Section 249B of
the Public Services Pensions Act 2013.

Page 41

7.

Agenda Item 9

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Sutton Pension Fund Risk Register December 2016 [Supplemental
Agenda]

Background Documents
N/A

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Consultation with other officers
Officer
Finance

Date: 27 November 2016

Comments Sought
Yes

Comments checked by
Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

N/A

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 43

Agenda Item 10

Report to:

Sutton Pension Committee

Report title:

Sutton Council Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee:

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning, 0208 770
5358

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●

Date:

12 December 2016

A Smart Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

01 December 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

This report presents the Sutton Council Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement
(Appendix A) and provides assurance that the governance arrangements comply with relevant
guidance. There is no material change in the governance arrangements since they were last
reported to the Pension Committee on 7 September 2015.

2.

Recommendations
The Pension Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Approve the Governance Compliance Statement attached at Appendix A.

3.

Background

3.1

Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended)
requires the Administering Authority (Sutton Council) to maintain a statement assessing the
pension fund governance arrangements and to keep the statement under review, consulting
such persons as it considers appropriate, and to make such revisions to the statement as are
appropriate, following a material change in the governance arrangements. The statement, and
any revised statement, must be published.

4.

Issues
Pension Fund Administration

4.1

Part 1 of the Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement relates to the arrangements for
pension fund administration and includes the following information:

Page 44

Agenda Item 10

(i)

The terms, structure and operational procedures of the delegation of functions to the
Pension Committee;

(ii)
(iii)
4.2

The frequency of Pension Committee meetings; and
Information on the Scheme employers and members represented on the Pension
Committee and whether they have voting rights.

As required by Regulation 55 (1) (c), the governance arrangements have been assessed (as
detailed in the attached statement at Appendix A) against guidance from the Secretary of State,
Department for Communities and Local Government (Local Government Pension Scheme
Governance

Compliance Statement Statutory Guidance, 2008). The assessment shows that the
arrangements comply with the guidance.
Arrangements for the Local Pension Board

4.3

Part 2 of the Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement relates to the arrangements for
the Pension Board, a stand-alone body tasked with assisting the Administering Authority with
securing compliance with the Regulations, any other legislation relating to the governance and
administration of the Scheme, taking account of guidance from the Pensions Regulator; and
assisting to ensure the effective and efficient governance and administration of the Scheme.

4.4

As required by Regulation 55 (1) (d), the statement provides details of the terms, structure and
operational procedures relating to the Board. In addition, these arrangements have been
assessed (as detailed in the statement) against the guidance from the Local Government
Pension Scheme Advisory Board established by the Secretary of State, Department for
Communities and Local Government (Guidance on the creation and operation of the Local
Pension Boards in England and Wales, 2015). This is because the existing statutory guidance
referred to in paragraph 4.2 does not cover Pension Boards. The assessment shows that the
arrangements comply with the Advisory Board’s guidance.

4.5

In July 2016 the Pension Board received a report from John Raisin following a review of
governance arrangements within the Pension Fund. This report highlighted some areas for
improvement which are being taken forward by officers and progress being tracked through an
action plan. The Governance Compliance Statement is regularly reviewed and will reflect any
changes made within this area.

5.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

5.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Legal

5.2

This report has been designed to meet the requirements of Regulation 55 of the Local
Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (SI2014-1146).

Page 45

6.

Agenda Item 10

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

A

Sutton Council Pension Fund Governance Compliance Statement

Background documents
Department for Communities and Local Government: L
 ocal Government Pension Scheme
Governance Compliance Statements Statutory Guidance (2008)
Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board: Guidance on the creation and operation
of the Local Pension Boards in England and Wales (2015)

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 02 December
2016

Consultation with other officers
Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

No

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 47

Agenda Item 10

Appendix A
London Borough of Sutton Council Pension Fund

Governance Compliance Statement
1.

Summary

1.1 Regulation 55 of the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 requires Sutton
Council to maintain a statement assessing the pension fund governance arrangements and
to make revisions following any material change in the arrangements. Part 1 of this
assessment covers pension fund administration (delegation to the Pension Committee) and
shows that the governance arrangements comply with statutory guidance from the
Secretary of State, Department for Communities and Local Government1. Part 2 covers the
Local Pension Board, a stand-alone body (not a secondary decision-making committee or
panel to the Pension Committee) and shows that the governance arrangements comply
with guidance from the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board2 established by
the Secretary of State. There is no material change in the governance arrangements for
either pension fund administration or the Local Pension Board.
Part 1: Arrangements for pension fund administration
2.

Delegation to the Pension Committee
Guidance:
2.1 The management of the administration of
benefits and strategic management of fund
assets clearly rests with the main
committee established by the appointing
council.
2.2 Representatives of participating LGPS
employers, admitted bodies and scheme
members (including pensioner and
deferred members) are members of either
the main or secondary committee
established to underpin the work of the
main committee.
2.3 Where a secondary committee or panel
has been established the structure ensures
effective communication across both levels.
2.4 Where a secondary committee or panel
has been established, at least one seat on
the main committee is allocated for a
member from the secondary committee or
panel.

3.

Assessment:
Compliant - This is discharged through a formal
decision-making committee, the Pension
Committee.
Compliant - In addition to six Councillors, the
Pension Committee includes a representative
for all other employing bodies in the fund and
an observer representing scheme members.

Not applicable as there is currently no
secondary committee or panel.
Not applicable as there is currently no
secondary committee or panel.

Committee membership and representation
Guidance:
3.1 All key stakeholders are afforded the
opportunity to be represented within the
main or secondary committee structure.
These include employing authorities,
scheme members, independent
professional observers, and expert
advisors.
3.2 Where lay members sit on a main or
1
2

Assessment:
Compliant - All key stakeholders are
represented on the Pension Committee.

Compliant - All members are treated equally

Local Government Pension Scheme Governance Compliance Statement Statutory Guidance, 2008.
Guidance on the creation and operation of Local Pension Boards in England and Wales, 2015.

Page 1

Agenda Item 10

Page 48

secondary committee, they are treated
equally in terms of access to papers and
meetings, training and are given full
opportunity to contribute to the decision
making process, with or without voting
rights.
3.3 Committee or panel members are made
fully aware of the status, role and function
they are required to perform on either a
main or secondary committee.
3.4 At the start of any meeting, committee
members are invited to declare any
financial or pecuniary interest related to
specific matters on the agenda.

4.

Compliant - Members receive briefings and
training including the need to declare at the start
of any meeting any financial or pecuniary
interest related to specific matters on the
agenda.

Assessment:
Compliant - The policy on voting rights is clear
and transparent. All elected members on the
Pension Committee have equal voting rights.
The single representative for all other employing
bodies in the fund is appointed as a non-voting
member. This is appropriate as admitted bodies
are very small in number and size.

Training / facility time / expenses
Guidance:
5.1 In relation to the way in which statutory and
related decisions are taken by the
administering authority, there is a clear
policy on training, facility time and
reimbursement of expenses in respect of
members involved in the decision-making
process.
5.2 That where such a policy exists, it applies
equally to all members of committees, subcommittees, advisory panels or any other
form of secondary forum.

6.

Compliant - Members receive induction training
and further training to enable them to fulfil their
roles and responsibilities.

Voting
Guidance:
4.1 The policy of individual administering
authorities on voting rights is clear and
transparent, including the justification for
not extending voting rights to each body or
group represented on main LGPS
committees.

5.

regarding access to papers, meetings and
training. They are given full opportunity and
encouragement to contribute to the decision
making process.

Assessment:
Compliant - Members have equal access to
training and reimbursement of expenses to
enable them to fulfil their roles and
responsibilities.

Compliant - As above.

Meetings (frequency/ quorum)
Guidance:
6.1 An administering authority’s main
committee or committees meet at least
quarterly.
6.2 An administering authority’s secondary
committee or panel meet at least twice a
year and is synchronised with the dates
when the main committee sits.
6.3 An administering authority who do not
include lay members in their formal
governance arrangements, provide a forum
outside of those arrangements by which
the interests of key stakeholders can be
represented.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Pension Fund Committee meet
with a quorum at quarterly intervals as required
by its terms of reference.
Not applicable as there is currently no
secondary committee or panel.
Compliant - All key stakeholders are
represented under the stakeholder
representation arrangements described in
Section 3 above.

Page 2

Page 49

7.

Access
Guidance:
7.1 Subject to any rules in the Council’s
constitution, all members of main and
secondary committees or panels have
equal access to committee papers,
documents and advice that falls to be
considered at meetings of the main
committee.

8.

Assessment:
Compliant - All members have equal access to
papers, documents and advice.

Scope
Guidance:
8.1 Administering authorities have taken steps
to bring wider scheme issues within the
scope of their governance arrangements.

9.

Agenda Item 10

Assessment:
Compliant - Under the Pension Committee’s
terms of reference it can consider any matter
relevant to the Pension Fund. Wider scheme
issues are evident in policy statements.

Publicity
Guidance:
9.1 Administering authorities have published
details of their governance arrangements in
such a way that stakeholders with an
interest in the way in which the scheme is
governed can express an interest in
wanting to be part of those arrangements.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Governance Policy and
Communications Policy are published on the
Council’s web site along with details of planned
meetings of the Pension Committee that are
open to stakeholders.

Part 2: Arrangements for the Pension Board
10. Functions of the Pension Board
Guidance:
10.1 The terms should set out the function of the
Board i.e. to assist the Administering
Authority to secure compliance and ensure
the effective and efficient governance and
administration of the LGPS.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Board is responsible for
assisting the Administering Authority in its role
as a Scheme Manager. In particular to assist
the Administering Authority to:




secure compliance with the Regulations;
any other legislation relating to the
governance and administration of the
Scheme; and requirements imposed by the
Pensions Regulator in relation to the
Scheme and;
ensure the effective and efficient
governance and administration of the
Scheme.

11. Membership
Guidance:
11.1. The terms should include the number of
each category of Board member (including
other representatives), the appointment

Assessment:
Compliant - The Pension Board consists of 7
members and is constituted as follows:

Page 3

Agenda Item 10

Page 50

and selection process, term of office and
procedures for termination of office.





3 Scheme employer representatives
3 Scheme member representatives
1 Independent member selected by the
Administering Authority

There are person specifications and job
descriptions for each role. Vacancies are
publicised. Officers from the Administering
Authority assess each candidate’s statement
against the Person Specification and form a
shortlist of suitable candidates. If there are
more than 3 suitable candidates for each
vacancy then a ballot will be held.
Representatives serve for a fixed two year term
which can be extended subject to renomination. Termination occurs automatically
at the expiry of a term. Other than ceasing to
be eligible a Board member may only be
removed from office during a term by the
unanimous agreement of all of the other Board
members. The removal of the independent
member requires the consent of the Scheme
Manager.

12. Code of conduct
Guidance:
12.1. The terms should refer to the requirement
for the Local Pension Board to have a code
of conduct for its members and that
members of the Board should abide by the
code.

Assessment:
Compliant - Board members are subject to the
code of conduct for Board members.

13. Voting rights
Guidance:
13.1. The terms should: set out that employer
and member representatives of the Board
have equal voting rights; indicate where the
chair is from either the employer or
member representatives whether the chair
has a casting vote; and note that other
members do not have voting rights on the
Board.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Board consists of 6 voting
members, as follows: 3 Member
Representatives; and 3 Employer
Representatives. There is an equal number of
Member and Employer Representatives and 1
independent Chair who is not entitled to vote.
Other members do not have voting rights on
the Board.

14. Conflict of interests
Guidance:
14.1. The terms should refer to the requirement
for the Board to always act within the terms
of reference. The Local Pension Board
should have a conflicts policy for its
members and that members should abide
by the policy and provide information that
the Administering Authority may
reasonably require from time to time to
ensure that members do not have a conflict
of interest.

Assessment:
Compliant – The term provide the purpose,
scope and administrative procedures for the
Board and requires the Board at all times to act
in a reasonable manner in the conduct of its
purpose and abide by the conflicts policy and
code of conduct. All members of the Board
must declare on appointment and at any such
time as their circumstances change, any
potential conflict of interest arising as a result
of their position on the Board.

Page 4

Page 51

Agenda Item 10

15. Appointment of a chair / vice-chair
Guidance:
15.1. The terms should specify whether the
Board is to have a chair and/or vice-chair
and if so specify the roles, including
administrative and leadership
responsibilities, and how they are
appointed.

Assessment:
Compliant – The terms cover the appointment
of an independent chair and a vice chair and
their responsibilities.

16. Role of advisors
Guidance:
16.1. The terms should set out the role of
professional advisers, or other advisors to
the Board and the process for their
appointment and agreeing their fees. In
addition the process for the Board
accessing existing advisors to the
Administering Authority should also be set
out.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Board may be supported
through the appointment of advisers and can
consult with such advisers to the Board and on
such terms as it shall see fit within the budget
for the Board that is met from the Fund. The
Chair is required to notify the Administering
Authority of any proposed use of the existing
advisors to the Pensions Committee or of the
intention to consult with other advisers.

17. Role of officers
Guidance:
17.1. The terms should set out the role of officers
of the Administering Authority to the Board,
for example in the provision of secretariat
services to the Board or providing pension
fund information to the Board.

Assessment:
Compliant – The role of officers is to provide
support to the Board. This includes support
finance, pension administration and secretarial
support.

18. Administration of meetings including data protection
Guidance:
18.1. The terms should include the notice period
of Board meetings, the circulation of
papers in advance of meetings, the
decision making process, recording
minutes of meetings, a procedure for
dealing with urgent items of business and
the publication of information.

Assessment:
Compliant – The Board meets as a minimum 3
times each year. The chair of the Board with
the consent of the Board membership may call
additional meetings. Meetings normally take
place in the evening at the Civic Offices of the
London Borough of Sutton Council. The
agenda notice and supporting papers must be
issued at least 5 clear working days in advance
of a meeting except in the case of matters of
urgency. Any urgent items of business must be
agreed by the Chair and be of such matter that
cannot wait until the next ordinary meeting. The
Board seeks to reach consensus and decisions
are put to a vote when it cannot be reached.
Draft minutes of each meeting must be
circulated to all Board members within 10
working days after the meeting. Draft minutes
are then subject to formal agreement by the
Board at their next meeting. The minutes may,
with the agreement of the Board, be edited to
exclude items on the grounds that they would

Page 5

Agenda Item 10

Page 52

either involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as specified in Part 1 of Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972 or it
being confidential for the purposes of Section
100A(2) of that Act and/or they represent data
covered by the Data Protection Act 1998.

19. Quorum
Guidance:
19.1. The terms should specify a quorum for
meetings and in particular whether the
quorum should include a minimum number
of employer and member representatives.

Assessment:
Compliant - A meeting is only quorate when at
least one employer member representative,
one employer representatives and the
Independent Chair or Vice-Chair are present.
Substitute members are included within the
quorum. A meeting that becomes inquorate
may continue but any decisions will be nonbinding.

20. Attendance requirements
Guidance:
20.1. The terms should specify the requirements
for attending meetings and the
consequences of continued failure to
attend Board meetings.

Assessment:
Compliant - Representatives should endeavour
to attend all meetings and are required to
attend at least 2 out of 3 meetings each year.
Board membership may be terminated prior to
the end of the term of office due to a Board
member no longer being able to demonstrate
their capacity to attend and prepare for
meetings or to participate in required training.

21. Role of substitutes
Guidance:
21.1. The terms should specify whether
members are allowed to send substitutes
to meetings where they are unable to
attend themselves. Training requirements
should also be considered where
substitutes are permitted.

Assessment:
Compliant - Substitutes can be appointed by
Member representatives. Where appointed,
substitutes should be named and must
undertake the same training as full members.
Substitutes are allowed to attend on behalf of
absent representatives if sufficient notice is
given.

22. Creation of working groups / sub-Committees
Guidance:
22.1. The terms should specify whether the
Board has the power to set up subcommittees.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Board may establish subcommittees.

23. Allowances / expenses
Guidance:
23.1. The terms should specify the policy in
relation to the payment of allowances and
expenses to Board members.

Assessment:
Compliant - An annual allowance is paid to the
Independent Chair, in line with the
Administering Authority's policy on allowances.
The Administering Authority does not pay
allowances for Board members. Expenses are

Page 6

Page 53

Agenda Item 10

paid to Board members in line with the
Administering Authority's policy on expenses.

24. Budget
Guidance:
24.1. The terms should set out a process for the
Board to have access to a budget for
specified purposes

Assessment:
Compliant - The Board is to be provided with
adequate resources to fulfil its role set out in
the terms. The budget is met from the Fund
and determined by The Strategic Director –
Resources.

25. Knowledge and Understanding
Guidance:
25.1. The terms should refer to the requirement
for the Board to have a policy and
framework to meet the knowledge and
understanding requirements of the 2004
Act.

Assessment:
Compliant - The terms require the Board to
establish and maintain a Knowledge and
Understanding Policy and Framework to
address the knowledge and understanding
requirements of the Act.

26. Reporting
Guidance:
26.1. The terms should include arrangements for
the reporting of information to the
Administering Authority including direct
reporting arrangements where the Board
has material concern. In addition the
methods used to communicate to scheme
members and employers should be
included.

Assessment:
Compliant - The Board is required to report its
requests, recommendations or concerns to the
Pension Committee.
The Board should report any concerns over a
decision made by the Pension Committee to
the Committee subject to the agreement of at
least 50% of voting Board members provided
that all voting members are present. If not all
voting members are present then the
agreement should be of all voting members
who are present, where the meeting remains
quorate.
Where the Board is satisfied that there has
been a breach of regulation which has been
reported to the Committee and has not been
rectified within a reasonable period of time it is
under an obligation to escalate the breach. The
appropriate internal route for escalation is to
the Monitoring Officer and / or the Section 151
Officer.
The Board may report concerns to the LGPS
Scheme Advisory Board for consideration
subsequent to, but not instead of, using the
appropriate internal route for escalation. Board
members are also subject to the requirements
to report breaches of law under the Act and the
Code [and the whistleblowing provisions set
out in the Administering Authority's whistle
blowing policy].
Where the Board is not satisfied with the
response received it may request that a notice
of its concern be placed on the website and in

Page 7

Agenda Item 10

Page 54

the Fund's annual report.
Board agendas and minutes and training and
attendance logs may be published using the
following means: on the Fund’s website, as
part of the Fund's own annual report; as part of
the Governance Compliance Statement.

Page 8

Page 55

Agenda Item 11

Report to:

Pensions Committee

Date:

Report title:

Pension Administration Update

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director - Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):
Corporate Plan Priorities:

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Open/Exempt:

Open

12 December 2016

Andy Banham, Head of Pensions, 020 8770 5291
A Smart Council

Signed:

Date:

01 December 2016

1.

Summary

1.1.

This report provides an update on the main work streams impacting pension administration for
the period September to November 2016.

2.

Recommendations
The Pension Committee is recommended to:

2.1.

Consider and note the Pensions administration update report.

3.

Background

3.1.

Sutton and Kingston formed a shared service with effect from 1 April 2016 for the
administration of each respective Council’s LGPS. The Section also administers the Local
Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) on behalf of Sutton Housing Partnership, Carshalton
College, and other employers including off-payroll & academy schools and contractors. This
means that the Pensions Section is now administering the LGPS on behalf of in excess of 100
employers.

Agenda Item 11

4.

Page 56

Work in Progress
Shared Sutton and Kingston Pensions Administration service

4.1.

Following three unsuccessful attempts to recruit to the new Head of Shared Pensions Service,
the position was re-profiled into a two year secondment opportunity for a Pension Project/ Web
Enablement Manager. This position has now been appointed to and the successful candidate
started on 12 September.

4.2.

Following the restructure consultation, the final structure of the team is in place; internal
recruitment resulted in a number of the existing temporary staff being appointed to positions in
the new structure. Recruitment to the remaining two pension officer vacancies is under way
with interviews planned for early December.

4.3.

Priority work ensuring immediate entitlements are processed and dealing with the inherited
Kingston backlog of processes has been managed around meeting the valuation data
submission deadlines. The backlog has reduced by around 56% since go live and has
decreased at a much faster rate since the team finished dealing with t riennial valuation across
both Councils and ensuring all Annual Benefits Statements (ABS) were posted by the revised
deadline of 31st October (see 4.2.2). The team continue to deal with a very high demand for
estimates and costings relating to outsourcing, shared services and staff spin outs across both
Authorities.
Year End 2015/16 and Valuation 2016

4.4.

Valuation data queries from actuaries investigated and resolved in some cases with additional
data / extracts provided enabling the actuaries to complete the whole fund assessment as at
31 March 2016.

4.5.

ABS 2016 were due for issue by 31 August 2016 but were delayed with the above work taking
priority. The Pensions Regulator was informed of the delay, the reason and the expected date
of issue advised as no later than 31 October 2016. These were progressed around further
valuation query resolution and a total of approximately 16,000 (LBS & RBK) statements were
issued to active and deferred members of the pension fund by the end of October. Detailed
‘frequently asked questions’ were supplied with all statements as well as a specific email
address for queries. A member of staff is monitoring all emails received and either responding
to them directly or distributing to other members on the team ensuring that demand is
managed and does not increase to unmanageable levels leading to potential complaints. To
date approximately 300 enquiries have been received and responded to from both active and
deferred members.
Pensions Administration System – Civica Universal Pensions Management (UPM)

4.6.

A business case has been signed off for the upgrade, which will be installed and operational
from January. Assurances have been given from Civica that the upgrade will not affect

Page 57

Agenda Item 11

calculations, so apart from testing, there should be minimal disruption on the team.
4.7.

A new Self Serve for members of the pension fund product had been procured. This cannot be
rolled out until the pension system is upgraded. Once this is completed in January, this will
then become the next priority, with an expected full roll out by Summer 2017.

4.8.

Employer Self Serve has been rolled out to the majority of Sutton schools and take up has
been excellent, especially with larger employing bodies, which will reduce work over time. Any
work delivered to the self serve portal requiring authorisation is being prioritised to maintain
their buy in and continued use of this new way of working. The next phase of self serve will be
to allow employers to submit joiners on line.

4.9.

Regular releases to correct calculations have been installed in a timely manner A further
release is due to be installed into test on 2 December and then live on 12 December, which
should clear the remaining issues so all transfer types can then be progressed. Members will
not be disadvantaged by this system delay.

4.10.

Work continues on refining of agreed Sutton and Kingston standard letters, documentation and
processes with additional assistance being received from another Civica UPM client authority.
Further system administration and web training has been sourced for newly recruited officers
and for the Development & Support Team (Revenues & Benefits) to create resilience.
Redundancy & Early Retirement

4.11.

The Pension Service continues to provide early retirement entitlement & strain cost for LGPS
members age 55 or more and process retirement benefit entitlements for actual redundancy
terminations.

4.12.

For those staff that are not due to retire and are not part of any efficiency savings, and to
reduce unnecessary demand on the team, the intranet pages for both Sutton and Kingston
have been updated. The pages remind staff to review their latest Annual Benefit statement that
will show their expected pension at normal retirement age as well as a link to the LGPS
member retirement calculator and the associated reductions that may apply by taking benefit
early.
TUPE Transfers (potential Contractor / other Admission Agreements)

4.13.

Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) for Housing transfer potentially approx 40 staff, data
compiled for initial assessment as Admitted Body and report provided. Transfer to
Encompass on 1 July 2016 with final assessment to be obtained.

4.14.

Local Authority Trading Company (LATC) for Education transfer potentially 150+ staff, data
compiled for initial assessment as Admitted Body and report provided. Transferred to Sutton
Education Service (SES) on 1 November 2016 with an open (to new staff) arrangement - final
at start assessment to be obtained.

Agenda Item 11

4.15.

Page 58

Other Academy School changes – V
 ictor Seymour have joined the Greenshaw MAT, C
 heam
Fields Primary and Brookfield s chools have recently joined the Cheam Park Farm Junior
(LEO) MAT and will require assessments as at actual conversion.
Bulk Transfers

4.16.

Hymans will complete the following LGPS TUPE (Partnership) Bulk Transfers:
a) F
 ormer ASSHH (now People's Directorate) staff TUPE transferred to Croydon Equipment
Solutions a scheduled body in the LB Croydon LGPS fund, on 1 October 2012. Close to
settlement.
b) Shared service with Merton, Kingston & Richmond for Legal services from 1 October
2013, data compiled for actuary’s assessment of bulk transfer to Merton LGPS fund.
Close to settlement.

4.17.

Barnett Waddingham are dealing with subsequent transfers:
a) S
 hared service with Kingston for Highways & Transportation from 1 November 2015,
members deferred benefits being finalised and data to be compiled for actuary’s
assessment of bulk transfer to RBK LGPS fund
b) Shared service with Kingston for Human Resources from 1 May 2016, members deferred
benefits being finalised and data to be compiled for actuary’s assessment of bulk transfer
to RBK LGPS fund
c) End of shared service with LB Merton for Human Resources from 1 May 2016, members
deferred benefits being finalised and data to be compiled for actuary’s assessment of bulk
transfer to LB Merton LGPS fund
Accounting Report FRS17 2015/16

4.18.

Barnett Waddingham (BW) data requirements for FRS17/ IAS19 reporting, UPM data extracts
and Financial data - whole fund and each employer - provided for Carshalton College and (for
the first time) Orchard Hill College as at 31 July and for the 21 academy schools as at 31
August. Reports produced and distributed to the employers and some further queries/
revisions dealt with by the actuary.
Statistics as at 31 October 2016:

4.19.

Please see Appendix A, which details the membership figures for Sutton in Table 1 and for
Kingston in Table 2.

4.20.

Monitoring of Complaints - any cases are referred to the Head of Pensions for consideration
under Stage 1 of the LGPS Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP). Such issues are
reviewed and wherever possible are brought to a satisfactory resolution without the need for
reference to Stage 2 of the procedure.

Page 59

4.21.

Agenda Item 11

During this period there were two stage 1 complaints received. Both were linked to not
receiving a response from a former Kingston member of staff before the pension shared
service commenced and were resolved satisfactorily.

5.

Options Considered

5.1.

Not applicable

6.

Impacts and Implications
Financial

6.1.

There are no financial implications arising from the recommendations in this report.
Legal

6.2.

There are no legal implications arising in this report

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix Letter
Title
A

Data Tables

Background Documents
None

Audit Trail
Version

Final

Date: 02 December 2016

Consultation with other officers
Officer

Comments Sought

Comments checked by

Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

No

Equality Impact Assessment
Required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 61

Agenda Item 11
Appendix A

Data Tables
Table 1. Breakdown of Sutton Membership
Membership
Sutton

31 March
2013

31 March
2014*

31 March
2015

31 March
2016#

31 October
2016#

Active (main LGPS)*
(50/50 LGPS)

3,937

4,062

4,029
15

4,907
16

5,210
25

Preserved

3,593

3,860

4,138

4,207

4,291

Pensioner

3,097

3,187

3,340

3,518

3,574

Total

10,627

11,109

11,522

12,648

13,100

91

126

195

152

59
(101)

Opted out of LGPS
(Full year
projection)

* Since the introduction of Automatic Enrolment in April 2013 the number of staff being
entered or re-entered into the LGPS has increased as reflected in the Active membership.
This has also resulted in an increase in the number of members opting out of the LGPS
although the net result is an increase of approx 4% in the active membership since March
2013.
# Active member records now include additional records for holders of multiple posts.
31 March
2013

31 March
2014

31 March
2015

31 March
2016

31 October
2016

Age (Active)

54

64

77

74

45

Age (Preserved)

52

70

70

66

34

Early Ill Health

5

6

5

5

1

Early Redundancy /
Efficiency

34

27

25

38

30

Total new pensions

145

167

177

183

110

Retirements
Sutton

Page 62

Agenda Item 11

Appendix A

Table 2. Breakdown of Kingston Membership
Membership
Kingston

31 March
2013

31 March
2014

31 March
2015

31 March
2016#

31 October
2016#

5,549
16

6,050
16

4,836

4,854

Pensioner

4,037

4,132

Total

14,438

15,052

Active (main LGPS)*
(50/50 LGPS)
Preserved

No data as before joining shared
service

# Active member records include additional records for holders of multiple posts.
31 March
2016

31 October
2016

Age (Active)

73

42

Age (Preserved)

109

55

5

3

Early Redundancy /
Efficiency

42

22

Total new pensions

229

122

Retirements
Kingston

Early Ill Health

31 March
2013

31 March
2014

31 March
2015

No data as before joining shared
service

Page 63

Agenda Item 12

Report to:

Sutton Pension Committee

Report title:

Pension Governance Update

Report from:

Gerald Almeroth, Strategic Director – Resources

Ward/Areas affected:

Borough Wide

Chair of Committee:

Councillor Sunita Gordon

Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Lyndsey Gamble, Head of Financial Strategy and Planning, 0208 770
5358

Corporate Plan Priorities:
Open/Exempt:

●

Date:

12 December 2016

A Smart Council

Open

Signed:

Date:

01 December 2016

1.

Summary

1.1

This report updates the committee on governance arrangements including the action plan
resulting from the governance review recommendations considered by Pension Committee on 5
September and guidance on proposed changes to investment regulations including the
introduction of the new Investment Strategy Statement.

2.

Recommendations
The Pension Committee is recommended to:

2.1

Review and comment on the governance action plan as set out in Appendix A.

2.2

Note the changes to investment regulations to include the requirement for the preparation and
maintenance of an Investment Strategy Statement.

3.

Background
Governance Review

3.1

On 6 July 2016 the Pension Board received a report from John Raisin, an independent advisor,
following a review of governance arrangements within the pension fund. The report made a
number of recommendations for consideration. These recommendations were then presented
and discussed at Pension Committee on 5 September 2016. The Committee accepted the
report and agreed an action plan be produced.

3.2

Officers put together an action plan which addresses each recommendation made within the
report. The plan sets out action to be taken, timescales, progress made already and the
responsible officer / body. The recommendations have been given a low, medium or high

Agenda Item 12

Page 64

priority and the proposed timescales reflect this prioritisation. The plan aims for all actions to be
completed by September 2017, a period of twelve months after they were presented to Pension
Committee.
3.3

In addition the pension fund risk register has been updated to include the findings from the
governance report and these items will be reviewed and updated at regular periods alongside
the action plan.
DCLG Guidance

3.4

On 15 September 2016, the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG)
issued guidance on preparing and maintaining an Investment Strategy Statement:
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/553342/LGPS_G
uidance_on_Preparing_and_Maintaining_an_Investment_Strategy_Statement.pdf

3.5

This is a new requirement under the awaited Local Government Pension Scheme (Management
and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016. This will include a requirement to publish the new
Investment Strategy Statement (ISS) by 1 April 2017. It is expected that statements will be
kept under review and revised from time to time and at least every three years. The ISS will
replace the current Statement of Investment Principles document.

3.6

The ISS will need to include the following:
a) A requirement to invest money in a wide variety of investments;
b) The authority’s assessment of the suitability of particular investments and types of
investments;
c) The authority’s approach to risk, including the ways in which risks are to be measured and
managed;
d) The authority’s approach to pooling investments, including the use of collective investment
vehicles and shared services;
e) The authority’s policy on how social, environmental or corporate governance considerations
are taken into account in the selection, non-selection, retention and realisation of
investments; and
f) The authority’s policy on the exercise of rights (including voting rights) attaching to
investments.

3.7

One of the main aims of the new investment regulations is to transfer investment decisions and
their consideration more fully to administering authorities within a new prudential framework with
less central prescription. As such authorities will be responsible for setting their policy on asset
allocation, risk and diversity amongst other things. In addition, authorities will be required to
include details on risk management, their approach to pooling and social environmental and
corporate governance factors and engagement with companies through voting rights.

3.8

Regulation 8 enables the Secretary of State to issue a Direction if he is satisfied that an
administering authority is failing to act in accordance with the guidance on the investment
strategy statement.

Page 65

4.

Agenda Item 12

Impacts and Implications
Financial

4.1

There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Legal

4.2

There are no direct legal implications arising from this report.

5.

Appendices and Background Documents

Appendix Letter
A

Title
Governance Action Plan

Background Documents
DCLG Consultation - Local Government Pension Scheme: Guidance on Preparing and
Maintaining an Investment Strategy Statement (September 2016)

Audit Trail
Final

Date: 02 December 2016

Consultation with other officers
Officer

Comments Sought

Comments checked by

Finance

Yes

Lyndsey Gamble

Legal

N/A

N/A

Equality Impact Assessment
Required?

No

N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix A
Governance Review Action Plan

1

That the Constitution of the Council be
amended by adding a new point following the
existing point 1 of the “Function” of the
Pension Committee as follows “ To approve
all policy statements required or prepared
under the LGPS Regulations or any other
relevant statute, regulation or statutory
guidance.”

Low

2

That the 2015/16 Annual Report as prepared
and considered by the Pension Committee is
evaluated against the CIPFA statutory
guidance and a statement on compliance
included in the covering report on the
2015/16 Annual Report presented to the
meeting of the Pension Committee on 5
September 2016.

Medium

3

For the sake of both clarity and accuracy it
is made clear in any future Governance
Compliance Statement the source of the
“Guidance” used for the “Assessment” in
relation to both the Administering Authority
and the Pension Board.

Medium

Action
Include revisions to the
appropriate sections of
the constitution

Timescales

Progress

Responsible Officer

October 16

Changes agreed by
Lyndsey Gamble
Strategy and
Resources Committee
on 31 October 16

A compliance statement
is included within the
2016/17 Annual Report
evaluating the content of
the report against the
CIPFA statutory
guidance

September 17

The 2015/16 annual
Lyndsey Gamble
report has been
reformatted and
improved. The extent
to which it now meets
statutory guidance
was included within
the covering report
which was considered
at the September
Pension Committee.
There are further
improvements still to
be implemented and
progress on these will
be reported to
Committee as part of
the 2016/17 covering
report.

Be clearer about the
source of guidance in
Governance Compliance
Statement

December 16

An item has been
Lyndsey Gamble
included on the
December 16 Pension
Committee agenda to
review the Governance
Compliance
Statement. This
recommendation will
be implemented as
part of this review.

Agenda Item 12

Priority

Page 67

Recommendation

Governance Review Action Plan
That in accordance with the requirements of
the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice
No 14 a procedure relating to reporting
Breaches of the Law is prepared as soon as
practical for consideration and approval by
the Pension Committee.

High

A procedure relating to
reporting breaches of law
is prepared and approved
by Pension Committee

March 17

A procedure will be
Lyndsey Gamble
drafted for
consideration and
agreement by the
Pension Committee at
its meeting in March
17

5

That the Pension Committee receive a report
on the CIPFA “Code of Practice on Public
Sector Pensions Finance Knowledge and
Skills” (2013) and adopt the Policy
Statement contained within the Code.

High

Pension Committee to
receive a report on the
Public Sector Pensions
Finance Knowledge and
Skills Code of Practice
and Adopt the
associated policy
statement

December 16

Information on the
Lyndsey Gamble
Code of Practice will
be included in the
training item being
considered by the
Pension Committee in
December 16.
Committee will be
recommended to
adopt the policy
statement.

6

That the Pension Committee receive a report
on and adopt the 2010 CIPFA “Pensions
Knowledge and Skills Framework” for
Elected Representatives with the addition of
the expanded emphasis on Legislation and
Governance and the new area of Pensions
Administration included in the CIPFA
publication “Local Pension Boards, A
Technical Knowledge and Skills Framework,”
of July 2015.

High

Pension Committee
adopt the 2010 CIPFA
Pensions Knowledge and
Skills Framework

December 16

Information on the
Lyndsey Gamble
knowledge and skills
framework will be
included in the training
plan item being
considered by the
Pension Committee in
December 16 and
Pension Board in
January. Committee
and Board will be
recommended to
adopt the framework.

7

That the Pension Committee formally
approve a Training Programme for Committee
Members.

High

Develop a training plan
for both committee and
board members for
consideration and agree
by the Committee and
the Board.

December 16

Training Plan being
Lyndsey Gamble
developed. An item
has been included on
December 16 Pension
Committee

Page 68

4

Agenda Item 12

Appendix A

Appendix A
Governance Review Action Plan
8

That a comprehensive Medium Term
Business Plan including a Medium Term and
Annual Budget, is considered and approved
annually by the Pension Committee and
monitored by the Committee on a quarterly
basis.

Medium

9

That the Officers review the Risk Register to
ensure that it fully meets the CIPFA
guidance “Managing Risk in the LGPS” of
November 2012 and the “Actions” column for
all risks in the Risk Register include clear
and detailed controls to actively mitigate
risk.

High

Improvement medium
term planning for the fund
by preparing a medium
term and annual budget
which is agreed and
monitored by the
Committee

March 17

A cashflow forecast
Lyndsey Gamble
and budget for the fund
are currently being
prepared

The risk register is
reviewed against CIPFA
guidance including the
action column

December 16

An item has been
Lyndsey Gamble
included on December
16 Pension Committee
agenda

Medium

Ensure the review of the
risk register is included
on the Work Programme
every 6 months

Immediately

The current work
Lisa Doswell
programme has been
revised to include this
item

11

That the Funding Strategy Statement
prepared in conjunction with the 2016
Actuarial Valuation is formally considered
and approved by the Pension Committee
prior to the completion of the 2016 Actuarial
Valuation.

Medium

The Funding Strategy
Statement is considered
and approved by Pension
Committee

March 17

Review of Funding
Lyndsey Gamble
Strategy Statement by
Pension Committee to
be included on Work
Programme for March
17. Committee to also
receive draft
Investment Strategy
Statement for approval
and publication by 1st
April 2017

12

That a full review of the Investment Strategy
is undertaken following the 2016 Actuarial
Valuation.

Medium

Pension Committee
members and officers to
undertake review of the
investment strategy
following the results from
the triennial valuation

March 17

A dedicated session is Pension Committee
being booked for
and Officers
Pension Committee
members, officers and
David Walker at
Hymans to start to
review the investment
strategy

Agenda Item 12

The Pension Committee formally receives
and reviews the Risk Register on a six
monthly basis.

Page 69

10

Governance Review Action Plan
13

That the Officers undertake a detailed review
covering the Fund’s policies, reporting,
actions and activities against the “Key
issues to Consider” section relevant to each
of the six (revised) Myners Principles in the
CIPFA Statutory Guidance “Principles for
Investment Decision Making and Disclosures
in the Local Government Pension Scheme in
the United Kingdom 2012".

Low

Review key issues to
consider section of the
Myners Principles
against the CIPFA
guidance

September 17

Review still to be
conducted.

Lyndsey Gamble

14

That the Statement of Investment Principles
be specifically considered and approved by
the Pension Committee when any revision to
the Statement is made.

Medium

15

That the Pension Administration Update
report be extended to include regular
consideration of quality and performance
issues including information on the
adherence to the requirements of Code of
Practice No 14 by both the Pension Fund
and individual Employers within the Fund
together with the monitoring of agreed
Performance Standards in terms of
processing issues relating to individual
members of the Fund.

High

Improvements made to
the Pension
Administration report to
include adherence to
code of practice 14 and
performance
measurement indicators

March 17

Some changes to the Andy Banham
Administration Update
Dec 2016

16

That the Officers prepare a draft Pension
Administration Strategy under Regulation 59
of the LGPS Regulations 2013 (As amended)
for approval by the Pension Committee.

High

Prepare a draft Pension
Administration Strategy
for approval by Pension
Committee

June 17

Strategy to be drafted Andy Banham
in Early 2017

17

That the charges applicable to schools that
do not use the Council’s payroll are
reviewed.

Medium

Review charges to
Schools that do not use
the Council's payroll

March 17

18

That consideration is given to the further
enhancement of online information in respect
of the Pension Fund.

Medium

The pension website is
improved to ensure that
relevant, useful
information is easily
accessible

June 17

Agenda Item 12

Appendix A

Pension Committee
As and when required No changes currently Lyndsey Gamble
approve changes to the
made.
Statement of Investment
Principles

Andy Banham

Improvements to online information are
currently being
considered and
implemented.

Andy Banham / Paul
Garlick

Page 70

Charges to schools
are currently being
reviewed.

Appendix A
Governance Review Action Plan
19

That the Pension Board adopt the CIPFA
“Technical Knowledge and Skills Framework”
for Pension Boards, formally approve a
Training Programme for Board Members and
consider resolving that all Members
complete the Pensions Regulator’s online
Public Service Toolkit within a defined
timescale.

High

The Pension Board
adopts the knowledge
and skills framework and
approve a training plan
for board members

January 17

An item has been
Lyndsey Gamble
included on the board
work programme for
January 17

20

That the Pension Committee considers the
appointment of an Independent Advisor with
a broad remit across the areas of
responsibility of the Committee and including
training.

Medium

Pension Committee to
consider the appointment
of an independent advisor

March 17

A discussion item to
Lyndsey Gamble
be brought to Pension
Committee looking at
the pros and cons of
this approach

Page 71
Agenda Item 12

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 73

Agenda Item 13

Pension Committee Work Programme to December 2017
20 March 2017
● Member training
● Quarterly investment performance to December 2016
● Presentation by Partners Group (Infrastructure) and M&G (Bonds) for investment
performance results to December 2016
● Investment Strategy Statement
● Training Plan
● Reporting Breaches of Law
● Independent Advisor
● Pension Administration update
● Review of Work Programme
12 June 2017
● Member training
● Quarterly investment performance to March 2017
● Presentation by Newton (Global Equities) and Schroders (Global Equities) for
investment performance results to March 2017
● CIV Update
● Progress report Governance Recommendations
● Review of risk register
● Pensions Administration Strategy
● Pension Administration update
● Review of Work Programme
September 2017
● Member training
● Quarterly investment performance to June 2017
● Presentation by CIV and Harding Loevner (Global Equities) for investment
performance results to June 2017
● Governance Compliance Statement
● Pension Fund Annual Report
● Pension Administration update
● Review of Work Programme
December 2017
● Member Training
● Quarterly investment performance to September 2017
● Presentation by Invesco (Residential Property) and Blackrock (Property) for
investment performance results to September 2017
● Interim actuarial valuation of the Pension Fund as at 31 March 2017
● Review of risk register
● Pension Administration Update
● Review of Work Programme

This page is intentionally left blank

